NN V. T/ TV, TN, UL QU UL, .

4 Qq%ﬁ%ﬂ C lerk

B IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
%‘2 - T EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

i

GORDON ROY PARKER,
Plaintiff
07
V. CASE NO.: )
3 1
; i
Judge: R
Yahoo!, Inc., 701 First Avenue, Sunnyvale, (ER TR
CA, 94098, and Microsoft Corporation, One B e
Microsoft Way, Redmond, WA 98052-8300 P oo ong7
Defendants hie, AL L Clerk
B R __Dep.Clerk
COMPLAINT FOR COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT, CO BUTORY

COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT, VICARIOUS COPYRI HT
INFRINGEMENT, BREACH OF CONTRACT, AND NEGLIGENCE

Plaintiff in the above-styled action submits this Second Amended Complaint, and in

support thereof, sets forth and avers the following.

THE PARTIES

1.  Plaintiff Gordon Roy Parker (“Plaintiff”) is an adult male resident of the United
States, who resides and is domiciled at 4247 Locust Street, #8006, Philadelphia, PA, 19104.
Plaintiff does business in the state of Pennsylvania as internet publisher Snodgrass Publishing
Group, a sole proprietorship registered in Pennsylvania and licensed to do business in
Philadelphia, headquartered at 4247 Locust Street, #806, Philadelphia, PA 19104.

2.  Defendant Yahoo!, Inc. (*'Yahoo™) is a Delaware Corporation headquartered in
Sunnyvale, California, who can been served either at the address listed for it in the caption, or
through its registered agent, The Corporation Trust Company, 1209 Orange Street,

Wilmington, Delaware.
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3. Defendant Microsoft is a Washington Corporation, headquartered in Redmond,
Washington, who can be served either at the address listed for it in the caption, or through its
Delaware registered agent, The Corporation Trust Company, 1209 Orange Street,

Wilmington, Delaware.

NATURE OF COMPLAINT AND STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

4. This is a complaint for direct, contributory, and vicarious copyright infringement
of Plaintiff’s registered works, including but not limited to Outfoxing The Foxes, 29 Reasons
Not To Be A Nice Guy, and Why Hotties Choose Losers, all of which are literary works for
which Plaintiff is the sole owner of the copyright. Plaintiff makes these books available to

readers for free, via his website at http://www.cybersheet.com/library.html. These works were

registered with the Library of Congress in October 1998, March 1999, and September 2004,
respectively. It is also a complaint for breach of contract for any claims not governed by

copyright law, and negligence for any claims not governed by contract law.



Statement of Jurisdiction And Venue

5. Jurisdiction in this case is proper under 17 USC §501 (The Copyright Act), and
under 28 USC §§ 1331, 1332, 1338, and 2201(a).

6. Personal jurisdiction in this District is proper, because both Yahoo! and
Microsoft regularly transact and solicit business in the District, persistently provides services to
internet users, consumers and advertisers in this District, and derives substantial revenue from
services, including advertising services, rendered in this District.

7.  Personal jurisdiction is further conferred under Pennsylvania’s long-arm statute,
and is constitutional due to the minimum-contacts doctrine, such that personal jurisdiction would
not offend due process.

8. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 USC §1391(b) and 1400(a) because
both defendants conduct business in this District, and because their actions have injured Plaintiff,
who conducts substantial business in and is domiciled in this District, as is his business.

BACKGROUND

9.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference, as if fully stated verbatim herein, the entire
contents of paragraphs 1-8.

10. Plaintiff’s registered works have been profitable since literally the day his first
book, Outfoxing The Foxes, was released in October 1998. Since the release of that book, well
over a hundred other “seduction gurus” have authored similar books, for similar distribution over
the internet to a similar audience. Still more of these gurus have parroted substantial amounts of
the advice in Plaintiff’s books, clearly demonstrating the relevance of both his writing and his
business and distribution model. In every sense of the word, Plaintiff’s seduction “e-books”
have been pioneering. The best example of how pioneering Plaintiff’s works were is that one of

his concepts — the “pivot” female, used by men to improve their reputation — has now become an



actual occupation, through pivot-for-hire websites. The “pivot” was also mentioned in the
bestselling book The Game, by Neil Strauss (HarperCollins, 2005).

11. Part of this pioneering by Plaintiff included, as part of his business model,
making three of his registered works — Qutfoxing The Foxes, 29 Reasons Not To Be A Nice
Guy, and Why Hotties Choose Losers — available at no cost to his readers. Those works, the
first two of which were substantially profitable as sale items (each sold hundreds of copies),
continue to be profitable by drawing traffic to Plaintiff’s website, with revenue resulting from
affiliate (commissioned) advertising, and the sale of Plaintiff’s premium seduction-advice
content.

12. Plaintiff’s books were not the product of a writer’s coffeehouse folly; his
investment in creating his works was substantial. More than fifteen years have now gone into
the development of Plaintiff’s “foxhunting” seduction method, and continues to this day. This
included Plaintiff’s own interactions with women, countless conversations with friends and
acquaintances, analysis of relevant peer-reviewed research, his own personal research, at times
formal and informal, and through extensive participation in various internet message boards
dating back to August 1994.

13. Any publisher or author (Plaintiff is both) invests a great deal of time and money
to create works, and acquire and manage the rights to those works. They make significant
expenditures in marketing and distributing these works. Plaintiff has vigorously sought to
protect, defend and enforce his exclusive rights in and to his copyrighted works, including those
listed herein.

14. In order to profitably publish his work and continue in business, Plaintiff depends
on maximizing his revenue from these works. This is especially true because Plaintiff is not a

large corporate publisher, but rather a tiny, independent, internet-based operation. Literally



every dollar his books generate in revenue is precious to the existence of both his business and
his books. Without this revenue, Plaintiff has no incentive to continue producing his works, and
no incentive to incur further expense by marketing and distributing them.

15. Plaintiff is legally entitled under the Copyright Act to near-absolute control over
distribution and pricing of his work. Usually this control is driven by financial considerations,
but at times, artistic or other considerations may come into play in its exercise.

Plaintiff’>s Copyright Notice

16. Plaintiff’s copyright notice for the works in controversy in this lawsuit is
unambiguous. It is the equivalent of a sign outside a private home which states NO

TRESPASSING: THIS MEANS YOQU! The notice states plainly:

Copyright 1998-2002, Snodgrass Publishing Group. ALL RIGHTS
RESERVED. This document may not be altered in ANY way and may be
viewed ONLY by the user who downloaded it. It is nontransferable.'

17. Plaintiff registered his writing in the first place because the internet is rampant
with piracy. He has asserted his rights for all of his books, even his free ones such as Why
Hotties Choose Losers, because he wants no question in the mind of the reader that he does not
tolerate piracy or infringement.

18. Both Defendants “downloaded” Plaintiff’s books in the course of creating their
search engines and caches. They violated Plaintiff’s copyright when they republished and made
the documents available for display to millions of third-party users to view through Defendants’
websites rather than Plaintiff’s.

19. Defendants are legendary technology companies, with market capitalizations in
the tens and hundreds of billions of dollars. Each are publicly traded companies with teams of

legendary, top-flight legal advisers who help guide their every move, noting the potential legal

! Source http://www.cybersheet.com/library/fox14.html.




consequences. By no stretch are we dealing with innocent infringement here; the only question
is whether or not any affirmative defenses to a cause of action apply. Defendants are and have
always been well aware of their conduct and its potential legal consequences; indeed, Defendants
have as much or more at stake with this issue as Plaintiff, and as publicly traded companies, it is
clearly in the public interest that the issue be resolved in order to reduce volatility in each
Defendant’s stock price.

20. Both Defendants operate enormously popular and profitable internet search
engines. The search engines deliver billions of dollars in annual revenue to each Defendant
through the delivery of “sponsored links,” or targeted advertising directly tied to the search. For
example, a search on fishing might yield sponsored links for fishing equipment websites.
Sponsored links are sold through an auction system by which advertisers bid on “keywords.”
Sponsored links for seduction-related terms (such as “pickup artist”) might cost anywhere from
$0.10-0.50 per click.

Cash, Not Cache

21. In addition to their search engines, each Defendant operates what they call a
cache. The Wikipedia entry for this word describes it as “a temporary storage area where
frequently accessed data can be stored for rapid access.” This is correct: a computer’s cache is
vital to its operations, because it avoids duplication of effort, namely accessing a remote area of a
computer’s hard drive. Computers also can cache websites and webpages, downloading a copy
to a user’s desktop so that the page loads more rapidly in the future. Plaintiff’s copyright notice
takes this downloading into account when it states that it may be viewed “only by the user who
downloaded it.” This acknowledges that visitors to Plaintiff’s website will usually “download” a

temporary copy of the document to their computer for easy web viewing, or that they may save it

2 Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Cache




themselves for printing. These are all legal uses for a cache. What defendants have is “cash,”
not a cache, since they are able to monetize content without licensing it.

22. For the purposes of this lawsuit, a computer’s internal cache shall be referred to
by the term “computer cache,” and shall be defined by the characteristic that the purpose of this
cache is electronic storage within a closed computer system controlled by an individual user.
Also for purposes of this lawsuit, any third-party digital copying of electronic documents which
holds itself out to be a cache, such as Defendants’ search engines, shall be referred to as an
“internet cache.”

23. An internet cache bears little or no resemblance to a computer cache. Itisnota
set of “dumb pipes” over which information is transmitted, such as a telephone wire or an e-mail
system. If Plaintiff were to e-mail Defendants, the ISP computer caches would make copies of
the e-mail so that it could be sent, and the recipients’ computers would make copies of the mail
so that it could be read. By contrast, Defendants’ internet caches function as mirror websites,
which are defeined by Wikipedia as “an exact copy of another Internet site..” Indeed, that is
what Defendants’ search engine “cache” features provide: an unauthorized, exact copy of
Plaintiff’s website, including several of his registered works.

Defendants’ Opt-Out Policy

24, Defendants are testing the proverb that it is easier to seek forgiveness than
permission. Plaintiff has never licnesed his content to either defendant, yet both Defendants
have made wholesale copies of his registered works and displayed them on their websites. Both
Defendants maintain an “opt out” policy by which they will remove infringing material from
their internet cache upon request of the copyright holder, or in which they will honor various

electronic protocols such as robotx.txt. Plaintiff avers simply that he “opted out” of having his



work copied when he registered it with the Library of Congress, and refers the reader to the
volumes of precedent which have univerally rejected opt-out copyright protection.

25. Under the Copyright Act, Plaintiff is not required to notify Defendants of
infringement prior to filing suit. He is merely required to register his work. Plaintiff has.

Infringed Works Averments

26. OnJuly 1, 2007, at 8:49 a.m., Plaintiff performed a simple search on Defendant
Yahoo!’s website for “foxhunting” with the results restricted to his domain, cybersheet.com The

following screenshot shows the results’:
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27. The first two results returned were excerpts from and links to Chapters Five and
Fourteen of Qutfoxing The Foxes. A total of forty-five links were returned, including links to

Plaintiff’s other works. Links to Defendant Yahoo’s internet cache for each chapter were also

3 The URL for the search results is http://search.yahoo.com/search?p=foxhunting+site%3 Acybersheet.com&ei=utf-
8&fr=blie?




provided. Following is a screenshot from the internet cache page" for Chapter 14 taken at 8:53

a.m. on July 1, 2007:
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28. Yahoo’s internet cache page is an unauthorized, exact copy of the entire text of
Chapter Fourteen of Plaintiff’s registered work Qutfoxing The Foxes.

29. OnJuly 1, 2007, at 9:00 a.m., Planitiff searched Yahoo for results from his
domain for the word “hotties.” As the following screenshot indicates, a total of eighty-two
results were returned, including links to Yahoo’s internet cache pages for each result from
Plaintiff’s registered work Wiy Hotties Choose Losers. The first result was for the “Shaping

Up” chapter:’

* The URL for the internet cache page for Chapter Fourteen is http://216.109.125.130/search/cache?ei=UTF-
8&p—foxhunting+site%3 Acybersheet.com&fr=blie7&u=www.cybersheet.com/library/fox1 4. html&w=foxhunting&
d=Ki9raOrnOz33&icp=1&.intl=us

* The URL for the search results page is
http://search.yahoo.com/search;_ylt=A0geu.HloodGwScBzopXNyoA?p=hottiestsite%3 Acybersheet.com&fi=blie7
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30. At 9:06 a.m. on July 1, 2007, Plaintiff clicked the link to Defendant Yahoo’s

internet cache page of the Shaping Up chapter, and the following screenshot® shows the results:
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31. At 6:25 p.m. on July 1, 2007, Plaintiff searched Yahoo for the words “Reason #”

from his domain, cybersheet.com. The following screenshot shows a total of one-hundred thirty-

6 The URL for the internet cache page of the Shaping Up chapter is http://216.109.125.130/search/cache?ei=UTF-
8&p=hotties+site%3Acybersheet.com&fr=b1ie7&u=www.cybersheet.com/hotties/shapingup.html&w=hotties&d=I

doecN-rn0g90&icp=1&.intl=us
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four search results,’ with the first four results Chapters Twenty, Twenty-One, Twenty-Three, and
Four of his reigstered work, 29 Reasons Not To Be A Nice Guy, with each chapter’s number

corresponding to its “reason.”
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32. At 6:33 p.m. on July 1, 2007, Plaintift clicked the link to Defendant Yahoo’s
internet cache page for Reason Twenty of 29 Reasons ( entitled “Chick Logic”), as evidenced by

the following screenshot,® and the entire text of Reason #20 was returned::
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” The URL of the search results page is
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33. At9:11 am. on July 1, 2007, Plaintiff performed a search of Defendant
Microsoft’s website for the term “foxhunting” from his domain, cybersheet.com. The following
screenshot shows a total of 36 search results’ were returned, with the first two results being
Chapters Nine and Five of Qutfoxing The Foxes, respectively. The results page was also

littered with sponsored advertising links.
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34. At9:14 a.m., July 1, 2007, Plaintniff clicked the link for Defendant Microsoft’s
internet cache page for Chapter Nine of Qutfoxing The Foxes (“Time Management”). The
following screenshot shows that Microsoft has an entire copy'? of the chapter of Plaintiff’s

registered work on its website:

8 The URL for the internet cache page of Reason Twenty is http://216.109.125.130/search/cache?ei=UTE-
8&p=Y%22Reason+%23%22+site%3 Acybersheet.com&fr=b1ie7&u=www.cybersheet.com/library/reason20.htmi&w
=reason&d=WRkDrernQ9Td&icp=1&.intl=us

? The URL of the search results page is

http://search.msn.com/results.aspx?q=foxhunting+site%3 Acybersheet.com&FORM=MSNH

9 The URL for the internet cache page of Chapter Nine of Qutfoxing The Foxes is at
http://cc.msnscache.com/cache.aspx?q=8275362525539&lang=en-US&mkt=en-US&FORM=CVRE
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35. OnJuly 1, 2007, at 9:31 a.m., Plaintiff searched Defendant Microsoft’s website
for the term “hotties” on his domain, cybersheet.com. The following screenshot shows a total of
ninety-five results, the second of which was for the chapter “Popularity Checks,”"!

and which

included a link to the internet cache for that page:
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' The URL for the search results is
http://search.msn.com/results.aspx?q=hotties+site%3 Acybersheet.com& form=0BRE
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36. OnJuly 1, 2007, at 9:37 a.m., Planitiff clicked the link for Defendant Microsoft’s
internet cache page for the “Popularity Checks” chapter of his registered work, Why Hotties

Choose Losers.
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37. OnlJuly 1, 2007 at 6:41 p.m., Plaintiff searched Defendant Microsoft’s website
for the term “Reason #” from his website, cybersheet.com. As the following screenshot
indicates, more than 100 search results were returned, the first of which was a link to Reason
Fifteen of Plaintiff’s registered work, 29 Reasons Not To Be A Nice Guy, as well as a link to
Defendant Microsoft’s internet cache page of Reason Fifteen. Ironically, the excerpted text

which appears in the search results is Plaintiff’s copyright notice expressly forbidding its display:

14



Wab hmsges REEE] Maps {13 Hurey

"Reason #7 sitervybersheetoom - o 2 22 5 Yo D ko PSS
hi 0 Ringtenes - Related saarches:

testantly Dawnicad £ ¥ g Reasons War Irag

phtne. Reasens For Divorce

Propelierhead Reason
One Less Beassn Lyrics

Reasan Magazine
Ago Of ®
T Gaason N
Group AL RIGHTS The feason byrics

rud in AT eay snd Reason Quit Smoking

Cop 2
RES.MFD Thxs oty
Mmay be 3

i rpasnnl

Seduetion Libiary Diectory
ﬁﬂaﬁf)ﬂ 1 Re ®g £ w3 #4 R w5
#6 Resson =7 R =2 Reuson #5 Reason 210

Reason »11 Reason 12 Resson #12 Renson 14 Raason #15

38. At 6:56 p.m. on July 1, 2007, Plaintiff clicked the link to Defendant Microsoft’s
internet cache page of Reason Fifteen from 29 Reasons (“The Secret Slut”), as evidenced by the

following screenshot'*:
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39. Defendants do not add any new expression or meaning to its internet cache

pages, or its search results. When either the entire text (cache) or portions (search results) of

12 Defendant Microsoft’s internet cache page for reason Fifteen is at
http://cc.msnscache.com/cache.aspx?q=8272971779507&lang=en-US&mkt=en-US&FORM=CVRE
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Plaintiff’s registered works are displayed to users, Defendants simply include much or all of the
bibliographic information with which the books are originally published..

40. Defendants claim that their services are necessary to provide easy access to
information for internet users. As is clearly becoming evident by Defendants’ profits related to
search, and the increasing expense of search advertising, they are actually having the opposite
effect of commercializing the internet through the imposition of a “toll” on the information
superhighway in the form of sponsored-link advertising, and by siphoning revenue from other
internet search engines and portals which do not require wholesale copyright infringement in
order to function.

41. Defendants’ profits from search are clearly attributable to the infringement,
because neither Defendant is a charity, nor would they bother copying the works of others if they
did not know or believe it was profitable to do so. Indeed, there is absolutely nothing preventing
Defendants from removing all third-party content from their search engines and merely returning
sponsored links, yet they would be viewed as little more than spammers or marketing websites if
they were to do this. The middle ground of an opt-in policy would allow individual copyright
holders to determine what is searchable. If licesning content to search engines is as profitable for
the copyright holders as the search engines claim when attempting to justify a fair use, it would
follow that the copyright holders would gladly “opt in.”

42. Recent events have shown that Defendant’s core argument, the only one even
remotely capable of justifying infringement, that infringement is a “necessary evil” for them to
provide search to internet users has all but been refuted by the existence of Wikipedia, a user-
generated “searchable dictionary” which provides a wealth of information in response to user
queries, and which does so without having to commit a single act of infringement. Wikipedia’s

search results are far more targeted than those of either Defendant, due to the superior nature of
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its construction. In a world without Defendants’ search engines, Wikipedia-styled websites
could easily step in and even offered sponsored-link advertising targeted to search terms the way
Defendants do.

43. Beyond financial considerations, copyright law is designed to give copyright
owners artistic control over the display of their works as well. Plaintiff is currently unable to
license his content to search engines because they see no legal need to do so. Consequently,
Plaintiff has no control over his content being displayed on sites where, for artistic or political
reasons, he may not wish for it to appear. In the case of Defendant Yahoo!, Plaintift is
vehemently opposed to its recent collusion with the Chinese government, and is appalled that the
display of his works is used to make Defendants’ user search results more robust.

44, Defendants’ infringement is direct because the copying it is not made in response
to a user search query, but rather in anticipation of search queries. Defendants stocks its search
engine with pirated content prior to any user requests for that content, so that the content may be
served up instantly in the search results. The database of internet cache pages is constructed by
Defendants, not their users, and is done so under their full direction and control. Subsequent
vicarious infringements occur when users of Defendants’ search engines enter keywords that
match the site content, or request cached versions of the pages on the site, in this case entire
chapters of both of Plaintiff’s registered works.

COUNT I: DIRECT COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT

45. Plaintiff incorporates by reference, as if fully stated verbatim herein, the entire

contents of paragraphs 1-44.

46. Plaintiff is the sole owner of the copyrighted works Qutfoxing The Foxes, 29
Reasons Not To Be A Nice Guy, and Why Hotties Choose Losers. Each title was registered

with the Library of Congress prior to Defendants’ infringing conduct, and in full compliance
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with 17 USC §101 et seq. Plaintiff has properly and timely secured all exclusive rights to all of
these works, and therefore has standing to file this suit.

47. A wholly separate act of infringement of each registered work occurred when, as
averred in this Complaint, Defendant copied, in their entirety, all three of Plaintiff’s registered
works, for storage in its search results and internet cache pages, and display in response to user
queries.

48. A wholly separate act of infringement of each registered work occurred each
time Defendant displayed any or all of Plaintiff’s registered works in response to a user request
for the internet cache page.

49. A wholly separate act of infringement of each registered work occurred each
time Defendant displayed any or all of Plaintiff’s registered works in response to a user search
query.

50. The total number of separate acts of direct infringement is not known at this time,
but is believed to number in the thousands, given the pricing for the keywords which display the
text from Plaintiff’s registered works in the search results.

51. At all relevant times, Defendants, and only Defendants, directed and controlled
the infringing activity, and at all relevant times, Defendants had it within their power to stop the
infringement. Defendants’ infringement was willful, wanton, and wholly intentional, in
complete and total disregard for Plaintiff’s intellectual property rights, of which Defendants were
or should have been aware.

52. Defendants are not entitled to the safe harbor protection of the DMCA because
they derive profits directly attributable to the infringement, profits which would not exist but for
the infringement. These profits include advertising revenue through sponsored links, and any

revenue derived from the increased traffic to the site attributable to the infringement, as well as
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increased value to investors and increased goodwill. It is well established on the internet that
traffic has a pecuniary value; anything which increases a website’s traffic is creating value and
profit for that site.

53. As adirect and proximate consequence of Defendants’ conduct, Plaintiff has
suffered irreparable harm, and will continue to suffer this harm unless Defendants are enjoined
by this Court. The damages are especially severe because Plaintiff’s career plan has relied on his
earning income from online and offline sources. His income from offline sources is just beneath
the poverty level. Every last dollar of internet revenue allows Plaintiff to literally avoid living in
poverty.

54. By disregarding Plaintiff’s copyrights as averred herein and infringing upon
same, Defendants have violated his rights under the Copyright Act, 17 USC §106 et seq. He
states his claims for relief on this basis.

55. For each separate act of infringement, Plaintiff is entitled to statutory damages
under 17 USC §504(c)(2), in an amount not to exceed ONE HUNDREDAND FIFTY
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($150,000.00 US) for each infringed work.

56. Defendants’ deliberate infringement of Plaintiff’s copyrights has greatly and
irreparably damaged Plaintiff, a fledgling internet publisher who is barely eking out a living as it
is, and who needs literally every dollar he may rightfully earn, and will continue to damage
Plaintiff irreparably unless enjoined by this court. In the absence of injunctive relief, Plaintiff
will have no adequate remedy at law. Accordingly, Plaintiff is entitled to a preliminary and final
injunction in accordance with 17 USC §502.

57. Plaintiff is entitled to recover his costs, including any attorney fees he may incur

in the course of this litigation (he is seeking representation), in accordance with 17 USC §505.
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COUNTS II-I1I: CONTRIBUTORY AND VICARIOUS COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT

58. Plaintiff incorporates by reference, as if fully stated verbatim herein, the entire
contents of paragraphs 1-56.

59. Each user query resulting in the display of part of Plaintiff’s three works set forth
in this complaint in Defendants’ search results, or all of them in the cache pages, constitutes a
wholly separate act of contributory copyright infringement. Discovery will be required to
determine the exact number of violations.

60. At all relevant times, Defendants, and only Defendants, directed and
controlled the infringing activity, and at all relevant times, Defendants had it within their power
to stop the infringement. Defendants’ infringement was willful, wanton, and wholly intentional,
in complete and total disregard for Plaintiff’s intellectual property rights, of which Defendants
were or should have been aware. Defendants either knew or should have known that storing
Plaintiff’s registered works in its internet cache pages and search engine for display in results
would lead to infringement by its third-party users.

61. Asadirect and proximate consequence of Defendants’ conduct, Plaintiff has
suffered irreparable harm, and will continue to suffer this harm unless Defendants are enjoined
by this Court.

62. By disregarding Plaintiff’s copyrights as averred herein and infringing upon
same, Defendants have violated his rights under the Copyright Act, 17 USC §106 ef seq. He
states his claims for relief on this basis.

63. For each separate act of infringement, Plaintiff is entitled to statutory damages
under 17 USC §504(c)(2), in an amount not to exceed ONE HUNDREDAND FIFTY

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($150,000.00 US) for each infringed work.
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64. Defendants’ deliberate infringement of Plaintiff’s copyrights has greatly and
irreparably damaged Plaintiff, and will continue to damage Plaintiff irreparably unless enjoined
by this court. In the absence of injunctive relief, Plaintiff will have no adequate remedy at law.
Accordingly, Plaintiff is entitled to a preliminary and final injunction in accordance with 17 USC
§502.

65. Plaintiff is entitled to recover his costs, including any attorney fees he may incur
in the course of this litigation (he is seeking representation), in accordance with 17 USC §505.

COUNTS 1V/V: BREACH OF CONTRACT/NEGLIGENCE

66. Plaintiff incorporates by reference, as if fully stated verbatim herein, the entire
contents of paragraphs 1-65.

67. On the top of each page on Plaintiff’s website which contains his registered
works, exists a copyright notice expressly prohibiting transfer of the document to third parties,
and explicitly states that the document may be viewed only by the user who downloaded it.

68. By downloading the pages and making them available to third parties via their
websites, Defendants violated the contractual terms for the use of the documents on Plaintiff’s
website.

69. In addition to the three registered works, this notice appears above pages of
unregistered writing of Plaintiff’s, such as pages from his “player glossary” that also turned up in
the above searches, as evidenced by the screenshots.

70. Defendants’ conduct was willful and intentional. It was also negligent of
Defendant’s duty to respect Plaintiff’s terms of use.

71. For any claims not preempted by the Copyright Act, Plaintiff is entitled to relief

for breach of contract.

72. Alternative to paragraph 71 above, Plaintiff is entitled to relief for negligence.
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73. Due to the intentional nature of the actionable conduct, Plaintiff is entitled to
punitive damages.

74. Plaintiff is entitled to injunctive relief sufficient to terminate the actionable
conduct.

75. Plaintiff is entitled to costs of suit.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for the following relief:

1. An order of this court finding that Defendants have directly, contributorily, and
vicariously infringed Plaintiff’s copyrights for the three registered works set forth in this
Complaint.

2. For each separate act of infringement, unspecified statutory damages in the
amount of ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($150,000.00) per
violation, in an amount to be determined at trial.

3. An award of costs of suit.

4. Injunctive relief enjoining Defendants’ from future infringement of Plaintiff’s
copyright.

5. Such other and further injunctive relief sufficient to terminate the actionable

conduct, and any other relief which this Court shall deem just and proper.
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JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff demands trial by jury in this matter.

This the 3" day of July, 2007.
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Gordon Roy Parker

4247 Locust Street, #806
Philadelphia, PA 19104

(215) 386-7366

E-mail: SnodgrassPublish@aol.com
Plaintiff, Pro Se




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

GORDON ROY PARKER,
Plaintiff

V. CASE NO.:
Judge:
Yahoo!, Inc., 701 First Avenue, Sunnyvale,
CA, 94098, and Microsoft Corporation, One
Microsoft Way, Redmond, WA 98052-8300

Defendants

VERIFICATION

I, Gordon Roy Parker, Plaintiff, domiciled at 4247 Locust Street, Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, hereby attest, under penalty of perjury, that all statements of fact contained within
the foregoing COMPLAINT AGAINST YAHOO, INC. AND MICRO%QF{T ,JNC ‘alg?:;rue to
the best of my knowledge. N

This the 3" day of July, 2007 i

’ JﬁJeJ Clerk
Gordon Roy Parker ﬂ/ﬁ‘g

4247 Locust Street, #806
Philadelphia, PA 19104

(215) 386-7366

E-mail: SnodgrassPublish@aol.com
Plaintiff, Pro Se




